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Dear Jenny 

DISCHARGE OF CONDITION 67- DEVELOPMENT OF EXEMPLAR PHASE OF NORTH WEST 
BICESTER ECO TOWN 

 

This report letter presents an update to the Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) 3501-UA001881-UU41R-03 

dated June 2011; regarding groundwater flood risk in relation to Planning Condition No.67 of the 

Decision Notice dated 10
th
 July 2012. 

Planning Condition 67 states 

“No development approved by this permission shall begin until a scheme to avoid the risk of ground 

water flooding in accordance with Section 2.4.3 of the Flood Risk Assessment 3501- UA001881-

UU41R-03 (Hyder, June 2011) has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning 

authority. The scheme shall be fully implemented and subsequently maintained, in accordance with 

the timing / phasing arrangements embodied within the scheme or within any other period as may 

subsequently be agreed, in writing, by the local planning authority”.  An extract of Section 2.4.3 is 

contained in Appendix A.  

Hyder Consulting (UK) Limited was commissioned in August 2012 to undertake a Supplementary 

Ground Investigation & Geotechnical Design Report (hereafter referred to as “The Report”, Document 

reference 0001-UA004014-UP32-R-02-GI-F) to assist in discharging the above condition.  The Report 

explores the following two issues further:  

• To further understand the potential risk of groundwater flooding presented in Section 2.4.3 of 

the June 2011 FRA; and 

• To undertake further infiltration testing to confirm the SuDS suitability on site.   

The Report draws upon a number of previous reports for the larger Bicester Eco Development site and 

includes supplementary ground investigation work including trial pits and window samples undertaken 

in August 2012.  Section 5.3 of this report states 

“No groundwater was encountered within 11 of the trial pits excavated. However, groundwater was 
noted as seepage within trial pits, TP60 at 1.7m bgl and TP61 at 1.2m bgl in.” 
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The groundwater encountered in these two trial pits were noted as minor seepage within the 

superficial deposits, indicating small amounts of perched water held within the local soil, not the actual 

groundwater level.  A copy of The Report can be found in Appendix B of this letter. 

Therefore, geotechnical investigation indicates that groundwater is not an issue across the site and it 

is deemed that the risk of groundwater flooding to the site is low risk and the need for mitigation is 

minimal.  

The Report indicates that the ground is of reasonable permeability on site and that discharge of 

surface water to superficial aquifers would not present a groundwater flood risk.  This therefore allows 

the drainage on site to include infiltration of surface water as part of the SUDS design, maintaining the 

existing hydrological regime and avoid increased discharges to the watercourses. 

The drainage strategy drains water away from properties into less vulnerable areas such as roads 

which follow the SuDS treatment train; incorporating soakaway blankets; swales and rills prior to 

discharge to watercourse via attenuation ponds.  

To further minimise the risk of properties flooding, external elevation of the development will direct 

water away from properties; and into the SuDS systems. 

It is also worth clarifying that the original FRA report (see Appendix A) identified that “The evidence 

collected therefore indicates the potential for groundwater flooding in the Exemplar site is very limited 

and is unlikely to be a source of flood risk” and that a potential high risk was only assigned on a 

precautionary basis due to information from ground investigation in the surrounding area (i.e. off site) 

which encountered shallower groundwater.  However, the additional ground investigation undertaken 

and monitoring of boreholes (see table 2.1 of Appendix C Technical Memorandum dated 2 June 

2011) on site provide greater clarity relative to groundwater conditions on the Exemplar site and 

enable the risk of groundwater flooding to be considered as low risk.  

Therefore, the application site is now considered at low risk from groundwater flooding, and as such 

there is no minimum threshold requirement due to flood risk.  In addition, whilst the proposed 

development layout does not yet specifically identify the finished floor levels of all the residential units 

at this stage, levels in low lying areas of the development are being increased typically by a minimum 

of 300mm, further reducing the groundwater flood risk. The development should however include 

standard raised thresholds to prevent minor local surface flows from entering properties during heavy 

rainfall.  

In summary, additional geotechnical testing to investigate this issue indicates the risk of groundwater 

flooding is low and that the development is being designed in a way that will further reduce this risk 

and the consequences should flooding occur. 

Yours sincerely 

 

Philip Harker 

Technical Director 

Land Development 
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Appendix A:  
Extract of Section 2.4.3 of the FRA 3501-UA001881-UU41R-03 
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